# Te Ao Maori Hearing

# Volume 2 - Part 3

# Chapter 4

# **Decisions on Individual Submissions and Further Submissions**

### Table of Contents

1.	Te Ao Māori General and 4.1 Scope and Background	3-1
2.	4.1.1 The Region's Hapū and Iwi	3-6
3.	4.1.2 Hapū and Iwi Involvement in Resource Management	3-6
4.	4.1.3 An Understanding of Māori Values	3-7
5.	4.1.4 Environmental Issues of Concern to Hapū and Iwi and 4.2 Environmental Issues of Significance to Hapū and Iwi	3-9
6.	Objective General	3-13
7.	Objective 4-1 Environmental Management	3-13
8.	Policy 4-1 Hapū and Iwi Involvement in Resource Management	3-15
9.	Policy 4-2 Wāhi Tapu, Wāhi Tūpuna and other Sites of Significance	3-19
10.	Policy 4-3 Protection of Mauri of Waterbodies	3-23
11.	Policy 4-4 Other Environmental Issues	3-25
12.	Table 4.1 Environmental Issues raised by Hapū and Iwi	3-25
13.	4.5 Method - Memoranda of Partnership (MoP)	3-28
14.	4.5 Method - Code of Practice for Wāhi Tapu Protection and Discovery	3-29
15.	4.5 Method - Regional Iwi Environmental Projects	3-29
16.	4.5 Method - Iwi Management Plans (IMP)	3-30
17.	4.5 Method - Web-based Iwi Contacts Database	3-30
18.	4.5 Method - Joint Management Agreements	3-31
19.	4.5 Method - Resource Consent Processes	3-31
20.	4.6 Anticipated Environmental Results - Table	3-31
21.	4.8 Glossary of Māori Terms and New Terms	3-32



## 1. Te Ao Māori General and 4.1 Scope and Background

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
HOANE TITARI JOHN WI	2	16	Non recognition of Maori and the lack of integration for the purpose of benefiting the environment.	Reject
NGATI KAHUNGUNU IWI INCORPORATED	180	1	We ask that te reo content of the plan be retained with adjustments to cater for translations of the amendments sought throughout our submission, and that these translations accurately reflect their meaning and intent.	Accept
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	19	Horizons report back to lwi and Hapu once the above have been completed with written confirmation of their integration.	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	5	No decision requested but submitter seeks review and strengthening of how the objectives in the Te Ao Maori Chapter are transferred or incorporated into other chapters of the Proposed One Plan, in particular, how consultation requirements are specified and how Maori are involved as contributors to methods in achieving objectives.	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	6	No decision requested, but submitter requires an explanation as to why the One Plan has emphasised hapu with iwi second and highlights the need to review the best way to describe the natural grouping of Maori that have the ability to work with Horizons.	Accept in part
CHARLES RUDD	209	2	Amend "iwi authorities" to "Whanau and Hapu." (4th bullet point) Page No 2-1. Note: The word "iwi" must be deleted from this whole document and replaced with the word "Hapu."	Reject
HOANE TITARI JOHN WI	2	1	That adjustment to include those lwi/hapu organisations within representation of such organisation for purpose of communication and proper management of our regions.	Reject
MARAEKOWHAI WHENUA TRUST, TAWATA WHANAU TRUST, NGATI TAMA O NGATI HAUA TRUST AND TITI TIHU FARM TRUST	148	1	The sentiments expressing the Maori and its culture reads great, but within the implementation of actions, there is completely nothing (put it into practice).	Reject
NGATI KAHUNGUNU IWI INCORPORATED	180	17	Ngati Kahungunu lwi Incorporated seeks the retention of this chapter in its entirety apart from the amendments sought herein. We also ask for	Accept in part



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			consequential changes to be made to the translations.	
NEW ZEALAND ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION INC	226	4	No specific decision requested but NZAA supports recognition of the role of hapu and iwi in resource management issues.	Accept
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	1	We ask that Local Territorial Authorities recognise and provide for the input of hapu and iwi groups.	Accept in part
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	10	We urge Horizons Regional Council to adopt a cautious approach. [Referring to the degradation of the Hokio environment in Submission]	Accept in part
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	11	We would like to see the adoption of Maori values and indicators as a form of natural resource monitoring.	Accept in part
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	12	No decision requested but submits that the marine environment at Hokio (and elsewhere) is being compromised by the current management structure.	Accept in part
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	2	Horizons needs to invest in an lwi	Reject
PARERAUNAWA			strategy team with upper management influence, including a iwi liaison team that will realistically and effectively cover and consult with each and every iwi and hapu within their jurisdiction	
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	3	No decision requested but submits that it is fundamental that the 'One Plan' allows for genuine consultation. Consultation processes and policies need formulation and need to be included in the One Plan as an integral part of natural resource management.	Accept in part
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	4	No specific decision requested but submits that Maori values need to be recognised and provided for.	
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	5	All of the submissions made in the two One Plan Consultation meetings in Levin in 2005 and 2006 be noted and reported on to those respective submitters (as promised by Horizons),	Reject
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	6	A change to the term lwi on page 32 would adopt the word hapu and require Horizons to recognise hapu as the social unit from which to adopt and support planning documents.	Reject
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	7	'Te Ao Maori' section should be integrated into each section, not marginalised.	Reject
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	8	Ref Section 1.3.1.2. Ngati Pareraukawa would like	Accept in part

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			Horizons to provide iwi and hapu with examples of how partnership, protection and rangatiratanga will be taken into account by Horizons in future dealings with iwi and hapu.	
NGATI PARERAUKAWA	228	9	No specific decision requested but suggests that the use of hapu and iwi monitors. It may also be effective to use neighbouring hapu or iwi for resource consent monitoring.	Accept in part
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	14	The submitter seeks that "provision [be] made in this plan for the transfer of power to iwi authorities for the management of a resource as stated in section 33 of the RMA(1991)."	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	9	Submitter seeks review and amendment of chapter 4 to include the Principles of the Treaty of Waitangi in relation to environmental management.	Accept
PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL	241	119	That Horizons adopt Chapter 4: Te Ao Maori Resource Management Issues of Significance to Iwi Authorities.	Accept in part
	X 500	309	TARARUA DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 507	309	MANAWATU DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 515	311	HOROWHENUA DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 517	297	RANGITIKEI DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 532	309	WANGANUI DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL	241	40	That Horizons notes PNCCs support for the content of the Te Ao Maori Chapter, in particular the importance of local government developing more formal mechanisms for relationships with tangata whenua, and clarifying the parameters of those relationships.	Accept in part
	X 500	95	TARARUA DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 507	95	MANAWATU DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 515	95	HOROWHENUA DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 517	226	RANGITIKEI DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part
	X 532	95	WANGANUI DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept in part

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
JILL STRUGNELL	366	5	Cultural matters. There is a lack of focus on benefits and cost of policies on cultural matters. For example the concept of mauri in relation to water. The remedy is to consider carefully whether cultural beliefs generated in a society of small mobile communities and absolutely right for such communities can still influence decisions for quite a different society with greater scientific and technical knowledge in the twenty first century.	Reject
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	22	We would like to see the inclusion of the Principles of the Treaty of Waitangi in relation to environmental management (as defined by court rulings) included in section 4.	Accept
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	27	There seems to be no provision made in this plan for the transfer of power to iwi authorities for the management of a resource as stated in section 33 of the RMA (1991). This should be included.	Reject
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	28	In relation to the anticipated outcomes and the measurement of achievement many of these do not relate to all of the methods. All of the measures of achievement solely rely on the number of (environmental) partnerships developed rather than specifically identify the particular project developed eg. the number of GIS databases created, the creation of database of contacts, the number of resource consents that lwi participated in etc.	Reject
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	29	No decision requested, however submitter notes: the focus that is lacking in this plan is the fact that during the ten year period of this plan, Maori and lwi will have developed greatly, economically, socially and educationally and will be seeking a greater role in the management of its natural resources. This in turn with no substantial involvement of Maori or incorporation of Maori concepts in the decision making processes of the Regional Council will inhibit Maori to develop its role of kaitiaki resulting in further conflict.	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	1	Retain in full.	Accept in part
ENVIRONMENTAL	386	38	We also reiterate comments made	Accept

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
WORKING PARTY			earlier in the report (Chapter 2) relating to Council relations with tangata whenua. We encourage Council to work with tangata whenua to fulfil the various requirements of the Resource Management Act (1991)	
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	39	We also reiterate our encouragement for Council to consider and implement the recommendations on tangata whenua participation in environmental management. They were made to local authorities from the Parliamentary Commissioner for the Environment (1998):	Accept in part
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	40	We urge Council to seriously consider this proposed model as a means of creating sustainable partnerships with Maori in the region.	Accept in part
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	41	No decision requested, however submitter notes: We generally support the objectives, policies and methods outlined in this Chapter. However, there are areas we wish to amend and provide further comment on.	Accept
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	38	As for 386-38	Accept
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	39	As for 386-39	Accept in part
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	40	As for 386-40	Accept in part
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	41	As for 386-41	Accept
DIANA BAIRD	443	8	Therefore, my submission is that Horizons amend this section where it reads "iwi, hapu" to read "iwi, hapu and those whose families have lived on a specified area of land for more than 2 generations."	Reject
TE IWI O NGATI TUKOREHE TRUST	461	3	The Trust is supportive of all actions proposed in Chapter 4 and well appreciates the level of Mäori content accompanied by positive actions that will mitigate cultural offence or ongoing destruction of mauri within ecosystems. The Trust adds that wahi tapu include areas where battles were waged - that is where blood was spilt. This is very relevant to the coast and inland dune systems at Kuku, Horowhenua. The Trust very much look forward to ongoing positive dialogue, support and action as outlined in Chapter 4	Accept

## 2. 4.1.1 The Region's Hapū and Iwi

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	2	Retain in full.	Accept in part
HOANE TITARI JOHN WI	2	4	[Also referenced under Decision Point 2/1] The inclusion of the following Iwi organisations for the purpose of good consultation process for Maniapoto: - Tuhua Hikurangi Regional Management Committee - Hia Kaitupeka Marae/Ngati Hari Committee - Te Ihingarangi/Rereahu Committees - Ngati Rangatahi Whanaunga Association We do not support the inclusion of the Maniapoto Maori Trust Board.	Reject
HOANE TITARI JOHN WI	2	9	To include Tuhua Hikurangi RMC, Hia Kaitupeka Marae Committee, Rereahu Te Ihingarangi as Ngati Maniapoto Iwi Organisation for the Horizons Regional Council Region. Ngati Rangatahi o Wharauroa is also to be added as a Iwi for purposes of consultation.	Reject
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	42	We ask that the Council add the following iwi and hapu to the above list: Ngati Tamakopiri, Ngati Whitikaupeka, Ngai Te Ohuake, Ngati Hinemanu, Ngati Paki	Reject
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	42	As for 386-42	Reject
AOHANGA INCORPORATION	464	1	Te Hika a Papaauma ask to be included as an identified iwi and therefore kaitiaki of their rohe.	Reject

# 3. 4.1.2 Hapū and Iwi Involvement in Resource Management

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	3	Retain in full.	Accept in part

# 4. 4.1.3 An Understanding of Māori Values

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	17	Amend Section 4.1.3 to read: All things, both animate and inanimate, have been imbued with the mauri generated from within the realm of te kore. Nothing in the natural world is without this essential element - the mauri represents the interconnectedness of all things that have being. Humans have an added responsibility to ensure that the mauri inherent in natural resources is maintained. Inappropriate use of resources - for example, discharge of sewage to water, or erection of wind turbines on culturally significant mountains and ridgelines - impacts directly on the mauri of the water or mountain or ridgeline, and therefore all factors associated with it, including the mana of local Tangata Whenua.	Reject
	X 519	171	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 521	13	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Oppose	Accept
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	185	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 525	34	GENESIS POWER LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	138	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
	X 531	34	HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND - Oppose	Accept
MASON STEWART	394	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	199	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	209	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SUE STEWART	396	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	212	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	268	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	227	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	334	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	243	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	501	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	256	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	564	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	24	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 527	629	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	17	As for 395-17	Reject
	X 519	430	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	441	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	43	We also ask that the Council make the following addition to the end of this section [4.1.3 - An Understanding of Maori Values]: These explanations of Maori values include, but are not limited to the descriptions of: Tamati Ranapiri (Personal Manuscripts Te Wananga o Raukawa), Maori Marsden (The Woven Universe: 2003) Hirini Moko Mead (Tikanga Maori living by Maori values: 2003), Maori Marsden & Te Aroha Henare (Kaitiakitanga a definitive introduction to the holistic world view of the Maori: 1992)	Reject
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	43	As for 386-43	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	4	Retain in full.	Accept in part

#### 4.1.4 Environmental Issues of Concern to Hapū and Iwi and 4.2 5. Environmental Issues of Significance to Hapū and Iwi

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	28	Retain this section of the Plan subject to the amendments specified elsewhere in this submission.	Accept in part
	X 511	108	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	5	Water Quality and Demand Retain in full.	Accept
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	6	Land Use and Management Amend provision (j) to read: Adverse effects on land continue to have a detrimental effect on waahi tapu, waahi tupuna, traditional food gathering areas, native habitats and ecosystems.	Accept
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	7	Native Habitat and Biodiversity Add new provision: (m) Intellectual and cultural property rights of tangata whenua need to be protected.	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	8	Insert new Issue under Environmental Issues of Concern to Hapu and Iwi as follows: Heritage Protection (o) Land and resource developments can have adverse effects on the integrity and evolution of Maori culture. (p) The removal, destruction or alteration of waahi tapu and waahi tupuna has a negative effect upon hapu and iwi.	Reject
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	44	We also ask that the Council make the following additions to section 4.1.4. These are additional issues of concern for tangata whenua in our rohe: The general environment Ko te taiao (o) Remedial action to rectify adverse effects to environs is limited and/or insufficient (p) Monitoring of actions and activities affecting the environment is limited (q) The consequences for non- adherence to environmental guidelines (for example: regional policy) does not ensure the safety or enhancement of the environment.	Accept in part
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	44	As for 386-44	Accept in part



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
	X 527	410	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Accept in part
BALLANCE AGRI- NUTRIENTS LTD	454	4	Retain Section 4.1.4 (b)	Accept
BALLANCE AGRI- NUTRIENTS LTD	454	5	Retain Section 4.1.4 (i)	Accept in part
AOHANGA INCORPORATION	464	2	Te Hika a Papaauma would need to be involved in the selection of plant species.	Reject
CHARLES RUDD	209	3	Amend section 4.1.4 (c) and Maori translation to: "Lakes and streams (for example, Waipunahau (Lake Horowhenua) the Hokio Stream and their tributaries) have suffered degradation in the past and present years, therefore are considered culturally unclean."	Accept in part
CHARLES RUDD	209	4	Add following issue (including the Maori translation) to the list in Section 4.1.4, Water Quality and demand, page 4-4: "Ensuring those Landfills, Waste-stations and Wastewater treatment plants are well away from waterways to cause any potential contamination risk from leaching into the environs."	Reject
CHARLES RUDD	209	5	Add following issue (including Maori translation) to Water Quality and Demand, Section 4.1.4, Page No 4-5: "Excessive commercial groundwater bore takes by Agriculturists, Horticulturists, Nurserymen and Other commercial users, cause effects and effects to the environs, dune lakes, wetland, domestic users and possible cause salt intrusion of the aquifer."	Accept in part
CHARLES RUDD	209	6	Amend Issue 4.1.4 (i), Page No 4-5 (including the Maori translation) to read: "Farm management plans, inclusive of commercial Agriculture, Forestry, Horticulture, and commercial Nurseries, need to be encouraged to ensure consistent land management practices region-wide."	Accept in part
CHARLES RUDD	209	7	The following new issue (including the Maori translation) be added to Section 4.1.4, Land Use and Management, Page 4-5: "Ensuring those Landfills, Waste-stations and Wastewater treatment plants are well away from waterways to cause any potential contamination risk from leaching into the environs."	Reject

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
CHARLES RUDD	209	8	That the following new issue (including the Maori translation) be added to Section 4.1.4, Native Habitat and Biodiversity, Page No 4-5: "Introduction of Foreign Pests, Bacteria, Microbes, Viruses continue to be a risk and threat to the health of other living matter as well as commercial ventures."	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	11	Include schedule showing list of relevant plans including reference to the "Ngati Tuwharetoa lwi Environmental Management Plan, 2003"	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	10	Amend 4.2 to include additional provision as follows: Some of the Region's hapu and iwi have prepared lwi Management Plans as identified in Schedule xxx. The Regional Council will have regard to these plans when preparing or changing a regional plan.	Accept in part
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	9	Amend 4.1 and 4.2 and clearly number issues of significance for easier reference.	Accept in part
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	18	Add a new provision to Section 4-1.4 Land Use and Management Hapu and Iwi will be encouraged to identify mountains and ridgelines in the Region that have particular cultural significance. In consultation appropriate limitations to any development on these mountains and ridgelines will be imposed that might otherwise have been possible under Section 3 of the Plan.	Reject
	X 519	172	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 521	14	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	95	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	186	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	93	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	139	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
MASON STEWART	394	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	200	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	94	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED -	Accept



Submitter	No	Point	<b>Decision sought</b> Oppose	Decision
	X 527	210	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SUE STEWART	396	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	213	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	96	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	269	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	228	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	97	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	335	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	431	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	98	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	442	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	244	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	99	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	502	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	18	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	257	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	565	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	25	As for 395-18	Reject
	X 519	387	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	101	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	630	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject

#### **Objective General** 6.

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
LANDLINK LTD	440	24	We support the inclusion of Objectives in te reo Maori.	Accept

#### **Objective 4-1 Environmental Management** 7.

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
NGATI KAHUNGUNU IWI INCORPORATED	180	18	Amendment to "(b) Kaitiakitanga and the relationship of hapu and iwi with their ancestral taonga will be recognised [and provided for] through resource management processes."	Accept in part
HORIZONS REGIONAL COUNCIL	182	13	Change objective 4-1 (a) to read (in part) "The mauri of natural and physical resources will be protected by implementing the water quality standards in Schedule D and water allocation limits in Schedule B in order to provide for"	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	4	No decision requested, but submitter is pleased to see that the Te Ao Maori sections do contain many of the objectives from the previous Regional Policy Statement.	Accept
ENVIRONMENT NETWORK MANAWATU	356	17	ENM support this objective	Accept in part
HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND	357	46	Decision Sought: Amend Objective 4-1 by replacing' protected' with 'recognised and managed'	Reject
	X 527	37	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Oppose	Accept
TRUSTPOWER LIMITED	358	21	Amend Objective 4-1 to appropriately qualify the reference to 'the mauri of natural and physical resources' to address TPL's concerns. Any similar amendment with like effect.	Accept in part
	X 527	38	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Oppose	Reject
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	29	The amendment of (a) so that it provides for circumstances where the values associated with mauri may be affected but there is the opportunity to provide for the relationship through other means.	Accept in part
	X 511	109	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
	X 522	102	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED -	Accept in



Submitter	No	Point	•	Decision
	X 527	52	Support in part TARARUA - AOKAUTERE	part Reject
	202	40	GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Oppose	A count in
MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED	363	49	Meridian opposes Objective 4.1 and requests clause (a) is amended as follows or similar: (a)The mauri of natural and physical resources will be recognised and provided for in order to provide for the social, economic and cultural wellbeing of hapu and iwi. Any consequential amendments necessary to give effect to this submission	Accept in part
	X 511	110	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
	X 527	70	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Oppose	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	12	<ul> <li>Amend 4.3 to include additional objectives that reflect issues, policies and methods already described. An example of additional objectives are as follows (adapted from page 26 Proposed Regional Water and Land Plan Version .9.9.1, Environment Bay of Plenty).</li> <li>1. The principles of the Treaty of Waitangi (Te Tiriti o Waitangi) are recognised and taken into account in the management of the Region's natural resources</li> <li>2. Horizons Regional Council to cultivate partnership protocols with tangata whenua to: (a) Have particular regard to the role of kaitiaki in the management of land, water and geothermal resources</li> <li>3. Consultation with tangata whenua that recognises their societal structures, practices, protocols, and procedures, and status under the Resource Management Act 1991.</li> <li>4. The environmental concerns of tangata whenua are taken into account and addressed as part of resource management processes, while recognising that different iwi and hapu may have different concerns or practices.</li> <li>5. Resource management decisions have regard to iwi resource management planning documents.</li> <li>6. Maintain the biological and physical</li> </ul>	Reject

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			<ul> <li>aspects of the mauri of water, land and geothermal resources; and where practicable achieve the on-going improvement of the biological and physical aspects of the mauri where it has been degraded, as it relates to:</li> <li>a) Water quality meeting the specified water quality classifications.</li> <li>b) Water flows not breaching the instream minimum flow requirements.</li> <li>c) The life-supporting capacity of soils are sustained.</li> <li>d) Protection of geothermal surface features identified by, and of special value to tangata whenua.</li> <li>7. The extent of the spiritual, cultural and historical values of water, land and geothermal resources (including waahi tapu, taonga and sites of traditional activities) to tangata whenua are identified.</li> </ul>	
Х	531	35	HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND - Oppose in part	Accept in part

### 8. Policy 4-1 Hapū and Iwi Involvement in Resource Management

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
RUAPEHU DISTRICT COUNCIL	151	46	Iwi management plans adopted by Maori Trust Boards be received and considered but occupy a regulatory position below the District Plan.	Reject
	X 481	111	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Reject
RUAPEHU DISTRICT COUNCIL	151	47	Redraft the provisions of Chapter 4 so that roles and responsibilities of tangata whenua in the RMA consent process are clearly defined, certain and specified in the Plan.	Accept
	X 481	112	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Accept
TARARUA DISTRICT COUNCIL	172	22	As for 151-47	Accept
	X 481	293	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Accept
HOROWHENUA DISTRICT COUNCIL	280	23	As for 151-47	Accept
	X 481	384	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Accept
	X 531	37	HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND - Support	Accept

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
WANGANUI DISTRICT COUNCIL	291	55	As for 151-47	Accept
	X 481	515	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Accept
MANAWATU DISTRICT COUNCIL	340	31	As for 151-47	Accept
	X 481	587	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Accept
RANGITIKEI DISTRICT COUNCIL	346	22	As for 151-47	Accept
	X 481	727	PALMERSTON NORTH CITY COUNCIL - Support	Accept
CHARLES RUDD	209	9	That the word "iwi" in Policy 4-1(f), Page No 4-7 be substituted with the word "Hapu" and the Maori translation be amended accordingly so that the policy reads as follows: "Recognising and taking into account Hapu management plans lodged with council."	Reject
MARS PETCARE LIMITED	231	1	Add a new clause to the Policy as follows: (b) Recognise existing arrangements and agreements with hapü and iwi.	Accept in part
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	10	Clarification as to how hapu and iwi will be involved in the consent decision making process, such as for non notified consents, or prior to a hearing taking place.	Accept
	X 511	112	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	9	Genesis Energy requests amending the policy to read: Kaitiakitanga through <u>encouraging</u> : (a) <u>protocols or other types of</u> <u>arrangements</u> <u>memoranda</u> of <u>partnerships</u> to (e) development of joint management agreements <u>with local authorities</u> where appropriate.	Accept in part
	X 511	111	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
ENVIRONMENT NETWORK MANAWATU	356	18	ENM support this policy	Accept in part
WITHDRAWN MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY	373	3	WITHDRAWN Retain Policy 4-1.	Withdrawn

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
	X 495	81	RUAPEHU DISTRICT COUNCIL - Oppose	Reject
WITHDRAWN MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY	373	55	WITHDRAWN Policy 4-1(b) Consider facilitating the operation of catchment management groups, led by local farmers and made up of local community and other interested stakeholders.	Withdrawn
	X 495	82	RUAPEHU DISTRICT COUNCIL - Support	Accept
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	11	We also endorse Council's plans to enable and foster increased hapu /iwi involvement in resource management as outlined in section 4.4, policy 4-1.	Accept
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	11	As for 386-11	Accept
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	46	We ask that Council include a subsection for point (a): Relevant iwi, Maori organisations and/or Maori representatives are aware of Resource Consent applications affecting their respective environments.	Accept in part
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	46	As for 386-46	Accept in part
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	49	We support and encourage more 'flax roots' programmes as outlined in policy 4-1 in the Plan.	Accept
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	49	As for 386-49	Accept
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	19	Amend Policy 4-1 (a) to read: Memoranda of partnerships to set clear relationships and communication parameters to address resource management objectives, including the identification of culturally significant mountains and ridgelines, and the appropriate limitations to any development on those mountains and ridgelines	Reject
	X 519	173	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 521	15	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Oppose	Accept
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	19	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 519	187	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	140	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
MASON STEWART	394	19	As for 395-19	Reject



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
	X 519	201	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	211	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SUE STEWART	396	19	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 519	214	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	270	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	19	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 519	229	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	336	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	19	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 519	432	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	443	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	19	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 519	245	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	503	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	19	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 519	258	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	566	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	26	As for 395-19	Reject
	X 527	631	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	13	Amend policies at 4.1 to include: h) To recognise that tangata whenua, as indigenous peoples, have rights protected by the Treaty of Waitangi (Te Tiriti o Waitangi) and therefore the Resource Management Act accords Maori a status distinct from that of interest groups and members of the public. i) To take into account the principles of the Treaty of Waitangi in the management of land water and geothermal resources. j) To have particular regard to kaitiakitanga, including customary use and management practices relating to water, land and geothermal resources, in accordance with tikanga Maori,	Accept in part

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			<ul> <li>where this is consistent with the Resource Management Act 1991.</li> <li>k) To advise and encourage resource consent applicants to consult directly with tangata whenua where it is necessary to identify the relationships of Maori and their culture and traditions with their ancestral lands, waters, sites, waahi tapu and other taonga, and the effects of the actual and potential adverse effects of proposed activities on that relationship.</li> <li>I) To consult tangata whenua on water, land and geothermal resource management issues according to the requirements of the Resource Management Act 1991 and in a manner consistent with tikanga Maori methods of consultation.</li> <li>m) To consult all appropriate tangata whenua holding mana whenua in circumstances where rohe (tribal boundaries), or areas of ancestral or historic interest may overlap.</li> </ul>	
Х	531	36	HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND - Oppose in part	Reject

# 9. Policy 4-2 Wāhi Tapu, Wāhi Tūpuna and other Sites of Significance

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
NGATI KAHUNGUNU IWI INCORPORATED	180	19	Amend Policy 4-2: "Waahi tapu, waahi tupuna and other sites [and areas] of significance	Accept in part
	X 518	6	NEW ZEALAND HISTORIC PLACES TRUST - CENTRAL REGION - Support	Accept in part
CHARLES RUDD	209	10	Amend Policy 4-2 heading, Page No 4-7 and the Maori translation to read "Waahi Tapu, Taonga Tapu, Tapu Whenua and other sites of significance." [Note: If accepted, this would also flow through into Policy 4-2(a)]	Reject

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
CHARLES RUDD	209	11	That Policy 4-2(b)(ii), page 4-8, be amended (including the Maori translation) to read as follows: "Regional council CANNOT facilitate the compilation of a database with hapu and iwi to map the locations of waahi tapu and other sites of special significance, <u>Unless</u> without the appropriate explicit permission of the appropriate people concerned, whether they be Whanau or Hapu, but not lwi . Interlectual Property AND Confidentiality is most crucial.	Accept in part
NEW ZEALAND ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION INC	226	5	No specific decision requested but NZAA note that Policy 4-2 encourages the identification of wahi tapu, wahi tupuna and other sites of significance to Maori. The Site Recording Scheme contains a valuable inventory of archaeological sites within the region that will assist in this process.	Accept
	X 518	5	NEW ZEALAND HISTORIC PLACES TRUST - CENTRAL REGION - Support	Accept
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	11	Amend Policy 4-2 as follows: shall be appropriately managed to recognise protected from subdivision, use and development that would cause adverse effects on the by: (i) Encouraging resource consent applicants, resource users or contractors to undertake early and meaningful consultation with hapu and iwi, to develop such that cooperatively, damage minimisation protocols are developed where it is likely that such sites might exist.	Accept in part
	X 511	113	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
	X 519	3	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Support	Accept in part
NEW ZEALAND HISTORIC PLACES TRUST - CENTRAL REGION	353	5	Policy 4-2(a) is retained in the One Plan.	Accept
	X 492	63	MINISTER OF CONSERVATION - Support	Accept
ENVIRONMENT NETWORK MANAWATU	356	19	ENM support this policy	Accept in part

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND	357	47	Amend Policy 4-2 b) i) to read: Council will undertake consultation with iwi to develop minimisation protocols where a resource consent application may impact on a site.	Reject
	X 511	115	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Reject
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	30	The amendment of (a) so that it provides for circumstances where the associated values may be adversely affected.	Accept
	X 511	114	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	31	Recognition within the Policy that in a number of instances separate approval will be required under different legislation prior to any works occurring within or in close proximity to sites of significance. The One Plan should identify where this is the case. Duplications in assessment or approvals should be avoided.	Reject
MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED	363	50	Amend last paragraph of clause (a) as follows: shall be protected from <u>inappropriate</u> subdivision, use and development Any consequential amendments necessary to give effect to this submission	Accept
	X 527	71	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Oppose	Reject
MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED	363	51	Amend first paragraph of clause (b) as follows: Sites not identified by hapu and iwi under (a) above shall be protected from potentially <u>inappropriate</u> damage or disturbance by Any consequential amendments necessary to give effect to this submission	Accept in part
MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED	363	52	Amend Policy 4-2(a) and (b) to recognise that in some instances proposals, as well as mitigation measures, may provide benefits to the hapu or iwi. Any consequential amendments necessary to give effect to this submission	Reject
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	47	We ask that Council add the following words to this policy: (b) (iii) developing a code of practice whereby resource users and contractors have clear guidelines in the event rua koiwi, <u>taonga</u> , <u>artefacts</u>	Reject

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			or waahi tapu are discovered.	
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	47	As for 386-47	Reject
COLIN BOND	470	6	No specific decision requested, however submitter notes: I support the comment from 4.4 (Policies) Policy 4.2b (iii).	Accept
COLIN BOND	470	7	As for 470-6	Accept
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	20	Amend Policy 4-2 (a) (Waahi tapu, waahi tupuna and other sites of significance to Maori identified) to read "Wahi tapu, wahi tipuna and other sites of significance to Maori, including mountains and ridgelines identified"	Reject
	X 519	174	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 521	16	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	105	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	188	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	103	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	141	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
MASON STEWART	394	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	202	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	104	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	212	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SUE STEWART	396	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	215	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	106	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	271	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	230	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	107	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	337	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	433	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	108	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	444	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	246	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	109	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	504	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	20	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 519	259	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	567	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	27	As for 395-20	Reject
	X 527	632	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject

#### 10. Policy 4-3 Protection of Mauri of Waterbodies

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
HORIZONS REGIONAL COUNCIL	182	14	Amend Policy 4-3 (a) to remove reference to Policy 6-21 and refer to Policy 6-19 instead.	Accept
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	12	Amend (a) to read "The Regional Council will protect the mauri of waterbodies <u>by encouraging the</u> <u>implementation</u> of Policy 4-1	Reject
	X 511	116	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Reject
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	13	Delete Policy 4-3 (b) unless the specificity required by the RMA is provided.	Reject
	X 511	117	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Reject
WINSTONE PULP INTERNATIONAL LTD	288	12	WPI requests that Policy 4-3(b) be amended as follows: "(b) In exceptional circumstances the Regional Council, following consultation with potentially affected resource users, may initiate a rahui - temporary cessation of resource activities." WPI request any similar amendments with like effect. WPI	Accept in part



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			request any consequential amendments be made that stem from the amendment as proposed in this submission.	
	X 487	45	FONTERRA CO-OPERATIVE GROUP LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
	X 501	37	ERNSLAW ONE LTD - Support	Accept in part
ENVIRONMENT NETWORK MANAWATU	356	20	ENM support this policy	Accept in part
HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND	357	48	Amend Policy 4-3 to: Recognise and provide for the mauri of waterbodies.	Reject
	X 511	120	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Reject
TRUSTPOWER LIMITED	358	22	Amend Policy 4-3 to include a cross- reference to the policies and objectives of Chapter 3 in relation to providing for infrastructure and energy development (including renewable energy generation). Any similar amendment with like effect. Any consequential amendments that stem from the amendment of Policy 4-3 as proposed in this submission.	Reject
	X 527	39	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Oppose	Accept
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	32	See Mighty River Power submission to Policy 6-19.	Reject
FONTERRA CO- OPERATIVE GROUP LIMITED	398	12	Fonterra considers that Policy 4-3(b) should be revised to remove any special treatment for hydro electricity generation with respect to the minimum flow and core allocation requirements.	Reject
	X525	27	GENESIS POWER LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X522	517	MERIDIAN ENERGY LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X511	118	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X480	5	WINSTONE PULP INTERNATIONAL LTD - Support	Reject
FONTERRA CO- OPERATIVE GROUP LIMITED	398	13	Fonterra further considers that Policy 4.3(b) should be amended as follows: In exceptional circumstances the Regional Council will initiate a rahui - temporary cessation of resource activities (with the exception of public water supply) - on advice and guidance of hapu and iwi, and in consultation with those persons who may be affected, to allow the	Accept in part

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			necessary protocols to be carried out.	
	X511	119	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part

## 11. Policy 4-4 Other Environmental Issues

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
ENVIRONMENT NETWORK MANAWATU	356	21	ENM support this policy	Accept in part

## 12. Table 4.1 Environmental Issues raised by Hapū and Iwi

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	14	Amend table 4.1 in accordance with submissions to include reference to other resource issues as outlined above.	Accept in part
LANDLINK LTD	440	23	Other Maori concepts related to resource management that could be included on the One Plan are: Matauranga Whanaungatanga; Rangatiratanga; Mana Whakahaere; Manaakitanga; and Whakawhanaungatanga.	Reject
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	14	Remove the reference to the TPS in Table 4-1 (f).	Accept
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY	386	45	We seek the following decision from the Council - that the following amendment is made to this provision in the form of an addition: (a) That historic arrangements for Maori access to taonga are acknowledged and facilitated for (b) That marae access to natural resources are acknowledged and facilitated, especially where this access enables the efficient and effective functioning of marae and cultural activities (c) Resource consent applicants are required to undertake remedial action to rectify adverse effects to environs (d) The Regional Council will monitor environmental development to ensure compliance to the application and to ensure the integrity of the environment (e) The Regional Council will lobby the	Accept in part



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			relevant legislative bodies to impose penalties for non compliance that: i) are appropriate to the adverse environmental effects, ii) account for the remedial process, and iii) will act as a deterrent for those	
			intending not to comply.	
	X 525	14	GENESIS POWER LTD - Oppose	Reject
NGA PAE O RANGITIKEI	427	45	As for 386-45	Accept in part
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	21	Table 4.1 Add new provision to table Page 4-10 Resource issue of concern to hapu and iwi Many mountains and ridgelines in the Region have significant cultural importance to hapu and iwi and must be protected from inappropriate development. The increasing number of turbines on the ranges are becoming more visual from the various marae within the region and are being viewed negatively by the iwi and their guests. This negative view can be interpreted as having a negative relationship with the mountains and the mauri supplied from them. In general an over effect that may occur is a loss in mana for the iwi Resource issue in the context of tikanga Maori and belief systems. One of the most significant and visible aspects of the environment from which whanau, hapu and iwi identity is derived are mountains and ridgelines. The manifestation and expression of this relationship is seen and heard in waiata, haka, moteatea and whaikorero on marae and other cultural contexts throughout the region Relevant part of One Plan where the issue is addressed Chapter 4 Section 4.1.4 (k) Land Use and Management Policy 4.1 Policy 4.2	Reject
	X 519	175	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 521	17	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	114	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	189	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	112	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 525	35	GENESIS POWER LTD - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	142	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
MASON STEWART	394	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	203	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	113	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	213	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SUE STEWART	396	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	216	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	115	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	272	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	231	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	116	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	338	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	434	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	117	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	445	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	247	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 522	118	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	505	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	21	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	260	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
	X 527	568	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	28	As for 395-21	Reject
	X 519	388	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	633	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject

# 13. 4.5 Method - Memoranda of Partnership (MoP)

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
HOANE TITARI JOHN WI	2	10	4.5 Method of Implementation The Primary focus of this project is to improve working relationship with hapu and Iwi of the REGION to ensure hapu and Iwi relationship with ancestral lands, and taonga are protected. This would allow direct hapu and Iwi input to develop protocols with Regional Council directly to protect Waahi tapu and other sites of significance without the need to disclose the location to the general public.	Accept in part
GENESIS POWER LTD	268	15	Enable more transparency in the identification of sites of significance to hapu and iwi by making this information available in accordance with Policy 4-2(a).	Accept in part
	X 511	121	TRUSTPOWER LIMITED - Support	Accept in part
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	33	For the method to be amended so that information related to sites of significance will be made available upon request.	Accept in part
	X 525	104	GENESIS POWER LTD - Support	Accept in part
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	16	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept in part
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	8	Submitter seeks amendment of relevant methods in Section 4-5 to promote development of MOU (described as Memoranda of Partnership in the Proposed One Plan) for partnerships that cover more than just the environmental matters.	Accept in part

#### 4.5 Method - Code of Practice for Wāhi Tapu Protection and Discovery 14.

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	11	Amendment of "Code of Practice for Waahi Tapu Protection and Discovery" project to ensure that consultation is undertaken to develop this practise on a case by case basis to recognise the individual significance of each site being impacted and that reference to this Code of Practice be made in rules in relation to this in any other section of the plan specifically in relation to earthworks that require this code of practice."	Accept in part
MIGHTY RIVER POWER	359	34	Amend the method to include a date by which the protocol will be in place. Once developed distribute the protocol widely including on the Council's web site.	Accept in part
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	24	We are opposed to the method; the development of a Code of Practice for Waahi Tapu Protection and Discovery and only identifying the Regional Council as the only participant. This should be re-worded to ensure that consultation is undertaken to develop this practise on a case-by-case basis to recognise the individual significance of each site being impacted. Also there are no rules in relation to this in any other section of the plan specifically in relation to earthworks that require this code of practice.	Accept in part
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	17	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept in part

#### 4.5 Method - Regional Iwi Environmental Projects 15.

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	12	Submitter seeks amendment to Project Name from "Regional Iwi Environmental Projects" to "Regional Iwi Projects" and inclusion of "environmental projects" in the list of set out under the Project Description.	Accept in part
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION	374	25	In the Method; regional and environmental projects, the description needs to remove the environmental	Accept in part



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
BOARD			projects and include its as a separate method with the remaining projects listed in more detail with this only relating to iwi (not hapu) or those organisations representing iwi.	
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	19	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept in part

# 16. 4.5 Method - Iwi Management Plans (IMP)

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	26	At this point in time we are a little puzzled by the inclusion of the method to develop lwi environmental management plans (IEPs) as they should have already been completed and included in this plan. Despite this the rest of the plan makes no provision for the recognition, inclusion or alteration of any rules in respect of any future IEP plan developed.	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	13	As for 374-26	Reject
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	15	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept

### 17. 4.5 Method - Web-based lwi Contacts Database

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	18	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept

### 18. 4.5 Method - Joint Management Agreements

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	23	There seems to be no methods that relate to the Treaty of Waitangi claims process and recognising the settlement from those claims other than investigating options of the development of joint agreements. We would like to see "investigate options for" removed and replaced with "develop". This method should only apply to lwi (not hapu) in relation to and in negotiation with the crown and settlements.	Accept in part
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	10	As for 374-23	Accept in part
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	20	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept

### 19. 4.5 Method - Resource Consent Processes

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TUWHARETOA MAORI TRUST BOARD	377	21	The Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board is wholly supportive of the project proposed and invites Horizons Regional Council to discuss ways in which the Board can participate in the project.	Accept

### 20. 4.6 Anticipated Environmental Results - Table

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TARANAKI / WHANGANUI CONSERVATION BOARD	374	21	In section 4.6 in the final table we would like to see the term environmental removed and replaced with partnership.	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	15	No specific decision requested, but submitter is suggesting that Horizons use a wider range of indicators be used, rather than just the number of (environmental) partnerships developed.	Reject
TANENUIARANGI MANAWATU INC	238	7	Submitter requests that the indicator statement in Row 4 of the table in	Reject



Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
			Section 4-6 (Anticipated Environmental Results) be amended from "Number of environmental partnership agreements with hapu" to "Number of partnership agreements with hapu."	

## 21. 4.8 Glossary of Māori Terms and New Terms

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	48	Add the following RMA definition to the glossary: Kaitiakitanga/Stewardship The exercise of guardianship by the Tangata Whenua in accordance with tiakanga maori in relation to natural and physical resources	Reject
	X 521	27	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Oppose	Accept
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	48	As for 395-48	Reject
MASON STEWART	394	48	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 527	240	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SUE STEWART	396	48	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 527	299	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	48	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 527	365	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	48	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 527	472	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	48	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 527	532	TARARUA-AOKAUTEREGUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	48	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 527	595	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	52	As for 395-48	Reject
	X 519	392	MIGHTY RIVER POWER - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	657	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE	Reject

Submitter	No	Point	Decision soughtDecisionGUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support
TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG)	395	49	Add the following definition to the Reject glossary: Mauri The mauri represents the interconnectedness of all things both animate and inanimate that have being. Nothing in the natural world is without this essential element, which must be protected.
	X 521	28	ALLCO WIND ENERGY N Z LTD - Accept Oppose
	X 522	404	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose
GRANT JOHN STEPHENS	369	49	As for 395-49 Reject
	X 522	402	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose
	X 531	126	HORTICULTURE NEW ZEALAND - Accept Oppose
MASON STEWART	394	49	As for 395-49 Reject
	X 522	403	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose
	X 527	241	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE Reject GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support
SUE STEWART	396	49	As for 395-49 Reject
	X 522	405	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose
	X 527	300	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE Reject GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support
	X 527	366	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE Reject GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support
ALISON MARGARET MILDON	401	49	As for 395-49 Reject
	X 522	406	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose
ROBERT LEENDERT SCHRADERS	442	49	As for 395-49 Reject
	X 522	407	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose
	X 527	473	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE Reject GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support
PAUL & MONICA STICHBURY	452	49	As for 395-49 Reject
	X 522	408	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Accept Oppose

Submitter	No	Point	Decision sought	Decision
	X 527	533	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
SHONA PAEWAI	467	49	As for 395-49	Reject
	X 527	596	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject
TONY PAEWAI	468	53	As for 395-49	Reject
	X 522	410	MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED - Oppose	Accept
	X 527	658	TARARUA - AOKAUTERE GUARDIANS INC (TAG) - Support	Reject